






















































































































































































































































































































































 TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING  

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
March 31, 2023 – 3:30 o’clock p.m. 

 
 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at 3:30 
p.m. on March 31, 2023. 
 
The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via 
teleconference: 
 
 Director Rocky J. Chavez  
 Director Nina Chaya, M.D. 
 Director George W. Coulter 
 Director Gigi Gleason 
 Director Marvin Mizell 
 Director Adela Sanchez 
 Director Tracy M. Younger 
 
 Also present were: 

 
Dr. Gene Ma, Interim Chief Executive Officer/Chief Medical Officer 
Candice Parras, Chief Nurse Executive 
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 

 Aaron Byzak, Chief External Affairs officer 
 Roger Cortez, Chief Compliance Officer 
 Dr. Henry Showah, Chief of Staff 

Jeffrey Scott, Board Counsel 
Susan Bond, General Counsel 
Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant 
 

1. The Board Chairperson, Rocky Chavez, called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. with 
attendance as listed above.     
 

2. Approval of Agenda 
 

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Coulter to approve the 
agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 Director Chavez led the Pledge of Allegiance.     
 
4. Public Comments – Announcement 
 

Chairperson Chavez read the Public Comments section listed on the March 31, 2023 
Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.  He asked that members of the public 
wishing to speak submit a speaker card at this time. 
 

 



    TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting       - 2- March  31, 2023 
 

5. Reports – Information Only 
 
  a)  Auxiliary Report – Linda Wolfe, President 
 

Linda Wolfe, Auxiliary President presented an overview of the Auxiliary program. 
She reported in March of 2020 (pre-pandemic) there were 535 active members in 
21 departments in the hospital.  Today, there are 200 active members in 13 
departments.  The first chance that the Auxiliary had to get back on campus 
began with the Vaccine Clinic.  Approximately 70 volunteers participated in that 
project.  Ms. Wolfe reported the student junior volunteers have not yet returned 
however the hope is to bring them back in the near future.  Ms. Wolfe stated as 
the Auxiliary is able to recruit and get more volunteers they can be fully staffed 
like they were pre-pandemic.  Two departments that are not yet staffed are the 
Emergency Department and ICU.   

 
Ms. Wolfe reported during the “quiet time” the Auxiliary Bylaws and Policies and 
Procedures were updated.   
 
Ms. Wolfe reported that there are two things the Auxiliary is most proud of, one of 
which is the Scholarship Program.  This year, 65 scholarships will be awarded to 
students at Palomar College, Mira Costa College and Cal State San Marcos on 
April 18th.  The second thing is the Gift Shop, wherein profits are turned into a gift 
to the hospital at the end of each year.   
 
In closing, Ms. Wolfe commented that Tri-City is a great place to volunteer and 
the Auxilians are happy to serve the hospital and the community in this way. 
 
Chairman Chavez commented that everyone is extremely proud of the Auxilians 
and the wonderful work that they do. 

 
  b)  Labor & Delivery Update – Dr. Gene Ma, Interim Chief Executive Officer 
 

Chairperson Chavez explained Dr. Ma will be presenting information on Maternal 
and Newborn Services.  The public will then have the opportunity to make 
comments followed by Board comments.  

 
Dr. Gene Ma, Interim Chief Executive Officer provided an informational update as 
follows: 

 
 Historical Overview 
 Deliveries at Tri-City Over Time 
 Competition from other Providers 
 Present Financial Data 
 Future Scenarios & Considerations 
 12 Month Projected Contribution Margin by Scenario 
 Future:  Executive Team Recommendation 

 
(Today’s power point presentation will be attached to the file copy of these 
minutes for reference.) 
 
A recommendation is anticipated for consideration at the April Regular Board 
meeting. 

 



    TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting       - 3- March  31, 2023 
 

 
Chairman Chavez opened the floor for comments from members of the public.  He 
recognized the following individuals: 

 
 Michael Williams 
 Vince Loughney 
 Joanna Sherman 

 
Director Sanchez thanked today’s speakers for coming and for their continued 
engagement.  She stated the entire board is dedicated to superior health care and 
communication.  As a board we are united in keeping open staff communication with our 
employees and we are dedicated to keeping OB services open here at this hospital.   
 
Chairman Chavez provided a summary of the recent LAFCO/Palomar matter in which 
LAFCO upheld the “health emergency” determination, granting Palomar Healthcare 
District the FQHC contracts through the last quarter of 2025 even though it was clearly 
demonstrated there was no healthcare emergency, nor financial emergency.  Chairman 
Chavez stated the Board hopes to take this problem and rebirth a better solution. He 
emphasized that the Board is committed to finding a solution.  He thanked everyone who 
attended today and to those who made comments as there is nothing more heartfelt than 
taking care of this important element. 

 
6. February, 2022 Financial Statements – Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 Mr. Rivas, Chief Financial Officer reported on the fiscal year to date financials as 

follows (Dollars in Thousands):   
 

 Net Operating Revenue – $219,476 
 Operating Expense – $238,294 
 EBITDA – ($2,747) 
 EROE – ($12,216) 

 
Mr. Rivas reported on the fiscal year to date Key Indicators  
as follows:   
 
 Average Daily Census – 119 
 Adjusted Patient Days – 57,393 
 Surgery Cases – 3,563 
 ED Visits – 36,619 

 
Mr. Rivas reported on the current month financials as follows (Dollars in Thousands): 
 
 Net Operating Revenue – $26,651 
 Operating Expense – $28,560 
 EBITDA – $75 
 EROE – ($1,051) 

  
Mr. Rivas reported on the current month Key Indicators as follows:   
 
 Average Daily Census – 128 
 Adjusted Patient Days – 7,008 
 Surgery Cases - 406 
 ED Visits – 3,870 



    TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting       - 4- March  31, 2023 
 

Mr. Rivas presented two graphs which reflected trending of the Average Length of 
Stay (ALOS) and Average Daily Census (ADC).   

 
7. New Business –  
 

a) Consideration to cast the ballot for the Regular and Alternate Special District 
Member on the LAFCO Commission 

 
Chairperson Chavez explained that every year, each Special District gets the 
opportunity to weigh in on who they would like to see on the LAFCO board.  
Chairman Chavez gave the board the opportunity to nominate one of the 
candidates on the ballot, 
 
Chairperson Chavez recognized Barry Willis, LAFCO candidate.  Mr. Willis 
requested the Board’s support. 

  
 Hearing no motion from any board member, there was no action taken. 

 
b)  Consideration to cast the ballot for the San Diego County Consolidated  

 Redevelopment Oversight Board 
 

It was moved by Director Chavez to cast the ballot for Patrick Sanchez 
for the San Diego County Consolidated Redevelopment Oversight 
Board.  Director Younger seconded the motion. 

 
The vote on the motion was as follows: 
 
AYES:  Directors:  Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,  

     Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 
NOES:  Directors: None 
ABSTAIN:  Directors: None 
ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

8. Old Business – None 
 
 Dr. Showah exited the meeting due to an urgent matter. 
 
9.   Chief of Staff –  
 

a) Consideration of March 2023 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving 
the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on 
March 27, 2023. 

 
In Dr. Showah’s absence, Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer and Chief 
Executive Officer presented the February 2023 Credentialing Actions and 
Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff, as well as the Clinical Privilege 
Request Form.  No concerns or “red flags” were raised by the Credentials 
Committee. 

 
It was moved by Director Gleason to approve the March 2023 
Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff 
and the Clinical Privilege Request Form as recommended by the Medical 



    TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting       - 5- March  31, 2023 
 

Executive Committee on March 27, 2023.  Director Coulter seconded the 
motion. 
 

The vote on the motion was as follows: 
 
AYES:  Directors:  Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,  

     Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 
NOES:  Directors: None 
ABSTAIN:  Directors: None 
ABSENT: Directors: None 

 
10.   Consideration of Consent Calendar 
 

It was moved by Director Coulter to approve the Consent Calendar.    
Director Gleason seconded the motion.   
 

The vote on the motion was as follows: 
 

AYES:  Directors:  Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,  
     Mizell, Sanchez and Younger 

NOES:  Directors: None 
ABSTAIN:  Directors: None 
ABSENT: Directors: None 

  
11.   Discussion of items pulled from Consent Calendar - None 
 
12.  Comments by Members of the Public  
 

Chairperson Chavez recognized the following individuals who also spoke in regards 
to Labor & Delivery services: 

 
 Gloria Rosenthal 
 Shannon Barnett 
 Sara Guerling 

 
13.   Comments by Executive Leadership and Chief Executive Officer 
  

Dr. Ma, Interim Chief Executive Officer provided a brief report, reviewing the 
following: 
 
 Roll-out of 30, 60, 90-day engagement plan which includes C-Suite Chow 

down, midnight snacks with the C-Suite and rounding to name a few, all of 
which have been met with enthusiasm.  

 Roll-out of community engagement plan.   
 Developing Strategic Plan to have a roadmap for our future. 
 Successful Radiological 3-year certification survey in which there were no 

findings and very positive feedback from surveyors.  Dr. Ma recognized Eva 
England and her team for their great work.   

 Dr. Ma also recognized and thanked Candice Parras, Chief Nurse Executive 
and Anna Aguilar, Vice President of Human Resources who are leaving the 
Tri-City family.  



    TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting       - 6- March  31, 2023 
 

 Withdrawal of masking mandates beginning April 3rd.  Intimidation or threats 
towards anyone choosing to wear a mask is a violation of our anti-harassment 
policies. 

 Doctor’s Day was celebrated on March 30th.  Dr. Ma thanked the medical staff 
office for the wonderful celebration that was attended by many physicians. 

 
15.   Board Communications 

 
Director Mizell commented on the emotion that was expressed today by members of 
the public.  As stated by Director Sanchez and Board Chairperson Chavez, Director 
Mizell reiterated that the board is dedicated to finding a good solution and keeping the 
unit open.  Director Mizell assured the public that the Labor & Delivery unit is 
something we all care about a great deal. 
 
Director Coulter wholeheartedly agreed with Director Mizell. He commented on the 
rebirth of Behavioral Health Services following suspension of that unit and is hoping 
we will be able to rebirth Labor & Delivery as well.   
 
Director Coulter thanked Dr. Ma for his leadership in his new interim role. He also 
congratulated Jennifer Paroly on her recent award “50 over 50”. 
 
Director Chaya thanked everyone for coming and sharing their personal stories.  She 
specifically thanked Joanne, Gloria and Brenda (who was not in attendance) for their 
stories and comments.  Director Chaya stated she has spent many nights on the unit 
with these nurses, taking care of patients collaboratively and “we give darn good care 
here”.  Director Chaya stated the board is committed to making sure the unit stays 
open and continues to give good care to those patients.   
 
Lastly, Director Chaya wished a happy Doctor’s Day to all the physicians that work in 
this hospital night and day with blood, sweat and tears to make sure the community is 
cared for. 
 
Director Sanchez thanked everyone for coming and stated she is hopeful the Board 
can prove our dedication to making this hospital what it needs to be and for keeping 
that line of communication open. She expressed her appreciation to the physicians, 
many of which have been here at Tri-City a very long time.  She recognized the two 
NICU physicians in attendance today for making the NICU what it is today, and for 
giving it the good reputation in our community and being the leaders for superiority in 
the NICU.   
 
Director Gleason expressed her appreciation to all who came today and spoke.  She 
stated the Board is in no hurry to make a decision that is negatively going to impact 
your lives or the lives of our community.  The Board is dedicated to finding the best 
solution for all.   
 
Director Younger reiterated comments made by fellow board remembers that we are 
all committed to making this work and we are all very passionate about Labor & 
Delivery.  Director Younger commented on the Board’s desire to be transparent. 
 
Lastly, Director Younger wished the physicians a happy Doctor’s Day and 
congratulated Jennifer Paroly on the “50 over 50” award. 
 

16. Report from Chairperson 



    TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting       - 7- March  31, 2023 
 

 
Chairperson Chavez agreed with all comments made by Board members.  He 
thanked all the speakers for their comments and he also thanked all those who 
attended the LAFCO meeting to show their support.  
 

 Chairman Chavez also wished our physicians a happy Doctor’s day.   
 

In closing, Chairman Chavez encouraged everyone to keep goodness in your heart 
and be respectful of everyone.  
 

17. Adjournment   
 
 There being no further business, Chairperson Chavez adjourned the meeting at 4:40 

p.m. 
 

 
 
___________________________ 

        Rocky J. Chavez, Chairperson 
       
ATTEST: 

 
 

____________________________ 
   Gigi Gleason, Secretary 
 



Building Operating Leases  
Month Ending March 31, 2023

Lessor  Sq. Ft. 

Base 
Rate per 
Sq. Ft.

 Total Rent per 
current month Services & Location Cost Center

6121 Paseo Del Norte, LLC
6128 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 180 OSNC - Carlsbad
Carlsbad, CA 92011 Approx 6121 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 200
V#83024 9,552    $3.59 (a) 51,751.31        07/01/17 06/30/27 Carlsbad, CA 92011 7095
Cardiff Investments LLC
2729 Ocean St OSNC - Oceanside
Carlsbad, CA 92008 Approx 3905 Waring Road
V#83204 10,218  $2.58 (a) 45,086.06        07/01/17 07/31/24 Oceanside, CA 92056 7095
Creek View Medical Assoc
1926 Via Centre Dr. Suite A PCP Clinic Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#81981     6,200 $2.70 (a) 20,197.50        07/01/20 06/30/25 Vista, CA 92081 7090
JDS FINCO LLC
499 N EL Camino Real La Costa Urology
Encinitas, CA 92024 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suite 4
V#83694 2,460    $2.15 (a) 7,169.67          04/01/20 03/31/23 Oceanside, CA 92056 7082
Mission Camino LLC
4350 La Jolla Village Drive Seaside Medical Group
San Diego, CA 92122 Appox 115 N EL Camino Real, Suit A
V#83757 4,508    $1.75 (a) 15,377.32        09/01/21 10/31/31 Oceanside, CA 92058 7094
500 W Vista Way, LLC & HFT Melrose
P O Box 2522 Outpatient Behavioral Health                                                                      
La Jolla, CA 92038 Approx 510 West Vista Way
V#81028 7,374    $1.67 (a) 27,462.02        07/01/21 06/30/26 Vista, Ca 92083 7320
Nextmed  III Owner LLC
6125 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 210 PCP Clinic Calrsbad                                                                      
Carlsbad, CA 92011 Approx 6185 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 100
V#83774 4,553    $4.00 (a) 23,297.92        09/01/21 08/31/33 Carlsbad, CA 92011 7090
OPS Enterprises, LLC North County Oncology Medical
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Clinic
Oceanside, Ca 92056 Approx 3617 Vista Way, Bldg.5
#V81250 7,000    $4.12 (a) 30,907.00        10/01/12 03/31/23 Oceanside, Ca 92056 7086
SCRIPPSVIEW MEDICAL ASSOCIATES
P O Box 234296 OSNC Encinitas Medical Center
Encinitas, CA 234296 Approx 351 Santa Fe Drive, Suite 351
V#83589 3,864    $3.45 (a) 14,447.11        06/01/21 05/31/26 Encinitas, CA 92023 7095
SoCAL Heart Property LLC
1958 Via Centre Drive OSNC - Vista
Vista, Ca 92081 Approx 1958 Via Centre Drive
V#84195     4,995 $2.50 (a) 17,473.44        07/01/17 06/30/27 Vista, Ca 92081 7095
TCMC, A Joint Venture
3231 Waring Court, Suit D Pulmonary Specialists of NC 
Oceanside, CA 92056 Approx 3231 Waring Court Suit D
V#83685 1,444    $2.59 (a) 3,754.00          02/01/20 03/31/23 Oceanside, CA 92056 7088

Total 256,923.35      

(a) Total Rent includes Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, etc. 

LeaseTerm                   
Beginning     Ending



Education & Travel Expense
Month Ending March 2023

Cost 
Centers Description Invoice #    Amount   Vendor # Attendees

8660 WORKERS COMP 21523EDU 149.00        82654 CRUZ, ANA
8740 ACLS 30223 150.00        83459 SANCIANGCO, SOCORRO
8740 MEDICAL TERMINOLOGY/ANOOTOMY 30223EDU 200.00        84234 RESURRECCION R. MENDIZABAL
8740 RADIOMPATHOLOGY 30232EDU 161.45        84235 ALBERTO H. GARAY
8740 ACLS 31023EDU 150.00        84242 ELARMO RUTH
8740 FETAL 32323 EDU 130.00        80402 SCHMIERER, ELIZABETH
8740 CARD LIFE SUPP 30223EDU 150.00        80615 VELASCO, MARY JANE P.
8740 RNC 32323 EEDU 200.00        81979 AZARIAN, SUSAN

**This report shows reimbursements to employees and Board members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon request.


	agenda.packet.April.portal 1
	agenda.packet.April.portal 1
	minutes.regular.meeting.3.31.23.final

	Mar23 Finance Lease BOD
	Operating Leases 

	Mar23 Education and Travel Expenses BOD
	Travel and Education




